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hard copy, to the following address: 
Treaty Compliance Division, Bureau of 
Industry and Security, U.S. Depart-
ment of Commerce, Attn: AP Reports, 
14th Street and Pennsylvania Avenue, 
NW., Room 4515, Washington, DC 20230. 
Telephone: (202) 482–1001. 

(b) Persons making exports under the 
general license established by § 110.23(a) 
or under a specific license shall submit 
by February 1 of each year one copy of 
a report of all americium and neptu-
nium shipments during the previous 
calendar year. This report shall be sub-
mitted to the Deputy Director, Office 
of International Programs at the ad-
dress provided in § 110.4. The report 
must include: 

(1) A description of the material, in-
cluding quantity in TBq and gram; 

(2) Approximate shipment dates; and 
(3) A list of recipient countries, end 

users, and intended use keyed to the 
items shipped. 

(c) Persons making exports under the 
general license established by § 110.26(a) 
shall submit by February 1 of each 
year one copy of a report of all compo-
nents shipped during the previous cal-
endar year. This report must include: 

(1) A description of the components 
keyed to the categories listed in appen-
dix A to this part. 

(2) Approximate shipment dates. 
(3) A list of recipient countries and 

end users keyed to the items shipped. 

[75 FR 44092, July 28, 2010] 

Subpart F—Violations and 
Enforcement 

§ 110.60 Violations. 
(a) The Commission may obtain an 

injunction or other court order to pre-
vent a violation of the provisions of— 

(1) The Atomic Energy Act; 
(2) Title II of the Energy Reorganiza-

tion Act of 1974; or 
(3) A regulation or order pursuant to 

those Acts. 
(b) The Commission may obtain a 

court order for the payment of a civil 
penalty imposed under section 234 of 
the Atomic Energy Act: 

(1) For violations of: 
(i) Sections 53, 57, 62, 63, 81, 82, 101, 

103, 104, 107, or 109 of the Atomic En-
ergy Act; 

(ii) Section 206 of the Energy Reorga-
nization Act; 

(iii) Any rule, regulation, or order 
issued pursuant to the sections speci-
fied in paragraph (b)(1)(i) of this sec-
tion; 

(iv) Any term, condition, or limita-
tion of any license issued under the 
sections specified in paragraph (b)(1)(i) 
of this section. 

(2) For any violation for which a li-
cense may be revoked under section 186 
of the Atomic Energy Act. 

[75 FR 44092, July 28, 2010] 

§ 110.61 Notice of violation. 
(a) Before instituting any enforce-

ment action the Commission will serve 
on the licensee written notice of viola-
tion, except as provided in paragraph 
(d). 

(b) The notice will state the alleged 
violation; require the licensee to re-
spond in writing, within 20 days or 
other specified time; and may also re-
quire the licensee to state the correc-
tive steps taken or to be taken and the 
date when full compliance will be 
achieved. 

(c) The notice may provide that, if an 
adequate and timely reply is not re-
ceived, an order to show cause may be 
issued pursuant to § 110.62 or a pro-
ceeding instituted to impose a civil 
penalty pursuant to § 110.64. 

(d) The notice may be omitted and an 
order to show cause issued when the 
Commission determines that the viola-
tion is willful or that the public health, 
safety, or interest so requires. 

§ 110.62 Order to show cause. 
(a) In response to an alleged viola-

tion, described in § 110.60, the Commis-
sion may institute a proceeding to re-
voke, suspend, or modify a license by 
issuing an order to show cause: 

(1) Stating the alleged violation and 
proposed enforcement action; and 

(2) Informing the licensee of his 
right, within 20 days or other specified 
time, to file a written answer and de-
mand a hearing. 

(b) An answer consenting to the pro-
posed enforcement action shall con-
stitute a waiver by the licensee of a 
hearing and of all rights to seek fur-
ther Commission or judicial review. 
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(c) The order to show cause may be 
omitted and an order issued to revoke, 
suspend, or modify the license in cases 
where the Commission determines that 
the violation is willful or that the pub-
lic health, safety, or interest so re-
quires. 

§ 110.63 Order for revocation, suspen-
sion, or modification. 

(a) In response to an alleged violation 
described in § 110.60, the Commission 
may revoke, suspend, or modify a li-
cense by issuing an order: 

(1) Stating the violation and the ef-
fective date of the proposed enforce-
ment action; and 

(2) Informing the licensee of his 
right, within 20 days or other specified 
time, to file a written answer and de-
mand a hearing. 

(b) If an answer is not filed within 
the time specified, the enforcement ac-
tion will become effective and perma-
nent as proposed. 

(c) If a timely answer is filed, the 
Commission, after considering the an-
swer, will issue an order dismissing the 
proceeding, staying the effectiveness of 
the order or taking other appropriate 
action. 

(d) The order may be made effective 
immediately, with reasons stated, 
pending further hearing and order, 
when the Commission determines that 
the violation is willful or that the pub-
lic health, safety, or interest so re-
quires. 

§ 110.64 Civil penalty. 
(a) In response to a violation, the 

Commission may institute a pro-
ceeding to impose a civil penalty under 
section 234 of the Atomic Energy Act 
by issuing a notice to the licensee: 

(1) Stating the alleged violation and 
the amount of the proposed penalty; 

(2) Informing the licensee of his 
right, within 20 days or other specified 
time, to file a written answer; and 

(3) Advising that a delinquent pay-
ment for a subsequently imposed pen-
alty may be referred to the Attorney 
General for collection pursuant to sec-
tion 234c. of the Atomic Energy Act. 

(b) If an answer is not filed within 
the time specified, the Commission will 
issue an order imposing the proposed 
penalty. 

(c) If a timely answer is filed, the 
Commission, after considering the an-
swer, will issue an order dismissing the 
proceeding or imposing a penalty sub-
ject to any required hearing. 

(d) If an order imposing a civil pen-
alty is issued, the licensee may request 
a hearing within 20 days or other speci-
fied time. 

(e) Except when the matter has been 
referred to the Attorney General for 
collection, payment of penalties shall 
be made by check, draft, or money 
order payable to the Treasurer of the 
United States, and mailed to the Sec-
retary, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Com-
mission, Washington, DC 20555–0001. 

(f) An enforcement action to impose 
a civil penalty will not itself revoke, 
modify, or suspend any license under 
this part. 

[43 FR 21641, May 19, 1978, as amended at 62 
FR 27495, May 20, 1997] 

§ 110.65 Settlement and compromise. 
At any time after issuance of an 

order for any enforcement action under 
this subpart, an agreement may be en-
tered into for settlement of the pro-
ceeding or compromise of a penalty. 
Upon approval by the Commission, or 
presiding officer if a hearing has been 
requested, the terms of the settlement 
or compromise will be embodied in the 
order disposing of the enforcement ac-
tion. 

§ 110.66 Enforcement hearing. 
(a) If the licensee demands a hearing, 

the Commission will issue an order 
specifying the time and place. 

(b) A hearing pursuant to this sub-
part will be conducted under the proce-
dures in subpart G of part 2 of this 
chapter. 

[43 FR 21641, May 19, 1978, as amended at 75 
FR 44093, July 28, 2010] 

§ 110.67 Criminal penalties. 
(a) Section 223 of the Atomic Energy 

Act provides for criminal sanctions for 
willful violation of, attempted viola-
tion of, or conspiracy to violate, any 
regulation issued under sections 161b., 
161i., or 161o. of the Atomic Energy 
Act. For purposes of section 223, all the 
regulations in 10 CFR part 110 are 
issued under one or more of sections 
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